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Vancouver, B.C. 
June 4, 1992. 

THE REGISTRAR: In the Court of Appeal for British Columbia, 
Thursday, June 4th, 1992. Delgamuukw versus Her 
Majesty the Queen at bar, my lords. 

TAGGART, J.A.: Mr. Taylor, before you begin, my colleague, Mr. 
Justice Lambert has developed a new category of 
inquiry. He says it's not a question but an 
observation. 

LAMBERT, J.A.: I was heartened to learn that the appellants are 
going to be making a further submission about the 
remedies issue by next Friday, a week tomorrow. I 
just wanted to say that I feel sure that it will cover 
the question of what exactly was the scope of the 
concession that was made about sovereignty, both in 
relation to title to land and in relation to self-
government. And the only reason I wanted to make this 
observation was that I wasn't so 100 percent sure that 
I thought -- so I thought it would be better to raise 
it now rather than to wait and see whether it was 
truly in the submission when we receive it. Thank 
you. 

MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, my lords. 
The Chief Justice was right, it is a vast area and 

somewhat unexplored area, and to try and compress it, 
and I am afraid I wasn't perhaps as clear as I could 
have been yesterday. 

I have prepared some summaries, which might be 
useful and I have handed one up and I will hand the 
other one up later. This can go at some point in the 
front of the speaking notes or the back of the 
speaking notes. Perhaps at the back of the speaking 
notes in this section. 

TAGGART, J.A.: That's the set we are working on now? 
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, and it would be, the speaking notes would be 

between pages 96 and 97. 
And my Lord Mr. Justice Lambert and My Lord Justice 

Hutcheon raised yesterday this question of if it's 
distinctive to the culture, how can't it be part of 
the core? And I would like to address that by 
comparing our characterization or understanding or 
submissions on what makes a right or practice an 
aboriginal right. And those are, those rights -- only 
occupation rights. Obviously section 35 encompasses 
other rights as well, treaty rights, that sort of 
thing. We are just here talking about these 
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1 occupation category of rights, and then Indians. And 
2 the definition which Mr. Williams gave and which I 
3 tried to deal with yesterday, and adopt fully, is that 
4 aboriginal rights include those matters that are 
5 integral to the native groups distinctive culture as 
6 at the date of sovereignty. Now, the two things I 
7 think worth noting is that it's distinctive culture, 
8 it's a cultural matter, in the main, but includes more 
9 than culture in some instances, and I will develop 

10 that. And the assessment is made at the date of 
11 sovereignty. 
12 And the source of protection for these rights is 
13 section 35 of the Constitution Act. Now, my lord 
14 Justice Lambert yesterday made the comment that 
15 although section 35 now exists, isn't it true that 
16 from the period 1871 through to 1982 the source of 
17 protection for "Indianness" had come from 91(24) and, 
18 that is true. Section 35 wasn't available. But just 
19 as that is true, there is a corrollary to that 
20 proposition. In analyzing what the core set of 
21 interests under 91 (24) is, one has to divorce oneself 
22 from the concepts of section 35. If you're going to 
23 say it's only 91 (24) during that 100 or so year 
24 period prior to section 35 (1), then it's not right to 
25 adopt the tests where the expanded concept of 
26 Indianness, which arose after 1982, as exemplified in 
27 Sparrow, for example, one has to look to the 
28 jurisprudence dealing with this core set of interests 
29 during the period 1871 to 1982 and the limitations, 
30 necessary limitations imposed by the courts during 
31 that period, in keeping with the distribution of 
32 legislative powers, and keeping in mind that section 
33 35 was not yet in existence, there had been no 
34 amendments to the constitution. 
35 Now, in that vein as well, I was -- there has to 
36 be a purpose for section 35. And if the appellants 
37 and supporting intervenors are correct, that 91(24) 
38 makes property and civil rights of Indians immune from 
39 provincial legislation, in our submission section 35 
40 was not necessary as a constitutional amendment. If 
41 the federal government wished to recognize -- had 
42 exclusive jurisdiction over all matters concerning 
43 Indians and lands reserved for Indians, property and 
44 civil rights of Indians, then it could have, by 
45 itself, recognized and affirmed aboriginal rights and 
46 there would be no necessity for the provinces to be 
47 involved in that process. Section 35 as a 
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1 constitutional amendment I think is a recognition that 
2 the province has jurisdiction, an overlapping 
3 jurisdiction, with the 91(24) jurisdiction. 
4 Now, dealing with the 91(24), I have set out the 
5 language used in a number of cases. From the Irwin 
6 Toy case, it's matters which are vital and essential 
7 elements of the federal jurisdiction. From the Four 
8 B, it's matters which are an integral part of federal 
9 jurisdiction over Indians and lands reserved for 

10 Indian. And Canard, it's matters which are intimately 
11 connected with Indian status and capacity. 
12 Now, those tests are not easy to comprehend and it 
13 involves drawing lines. But as soon as one passes, as 
14 the province says it is appropriate to pass, from the 
15 concept of all aboriginal rights having been 
16 extinguished during the Confederation period, one then 
17 has to start drawing lines, and one has to draw lines 
18 around Indian rights and Indianness and section 88, 
19 section 35 (1), and that whole process is nothing but 
20 a judicial drawing of lines. Under 91(24) those lines 
21 have been drawn. And in our submission, as a rule, 
22 cultural matters, per se, are not included in the core 
23 set of interests, not being matters which on the 
24 authorities are intimately or integrally connected 
25 with Indian status and capacity. And as authority for 
26 that, I think there can be no higher authority than 
27 the Natural Parents case. And I just -- I haven't got 
28 an extract of the argument made by the appellants in 
29 that case, but if I can put it to your lordships, it 
30 was argued on behalf the natural parents, as follows, 
31 the submission -- this is from Chief Justice Laskin's 
32 decision: 
33 
34 "The submissions of the appellants against the 
35 validity of the adoption order are based on a 
36 series of related propositions which I may 
37 summarize as follows: The Indian Act, which is 
38 an act in its present form, makes the original 
39 family tie the essence of Indian status and 
40 keeps the child in that status, at least until 
41 enfranchisement." 
42 
43 And Chief Justice Laskin, together with Messrs. 
44 Justice Judson, Spence and Dickson, accepted that 
45 argument, that this tie of family was at the core. It 
46 had to be at the core. There is nothing more critical 
47 to one's Indianness than the ability to grow up as 
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1 part of that group and learn the culture. 
2 Notwithstanding that, the minority in that case -- the 
3 decision was all the same, the Adoption Act applied 
4 and the children can be taken from their natural 
5 parents. The only defence in the minority was that 
6 and then they applied section 88. However, the 
7 majority, and there is a number -- there is four 
8 decisions -- all came to the opposite conclusion, that 
9 that tie to the family was not vital and essential, 

10 was not an integral part of Indianness and did not 
11 strike at the core. So, in effect, the provincial 
12 legislation, the Adoption Act applied ex proprio 
13 vigore. In terms of this cultural interest 
14 distinction, nothing can be clearer than this case, 
15 because there is nothing more central, I would submit, 
16 to one's cultural identity than the ability to be 
17 brought up amongst one's peer group or group and learn 
18 the institutions and learn the culture. 
19 Now, I would also submit that if the Natural 
20 Parents case were to be decided today under section 
21 35, different considerations would apply. Because 
22 section 35 is directed to that cultural aspect of 
23 being an Indian. 
24 Now, the other distinction, if I can --
25 LAMBERT, J.A.: So you're saying Natural Parents isn't the law 
2 6 now? 
27 MR. TAYLOR: No, I am not saying that. I would say that 
28 different considerations would apply. You would get 
29 into the balancing, the justification process. It 
30 still may be justified, or it may be justified in a 
31 particular situation, but it's the Sparrow test that 
32 would apply to the concept of community. 
33 LAMBERT, J.A.: The Natural Parents — 
34 MR. TAYLOR: The Natural Parents. 
35 LAMBERT, J.A.: -- case may not represent the law on the very 
36 issue in that case now because there is one more 
37 consideration that has to be taken into account that 
38 wasn't taken into account at the time it was decided? 
39 MR. TAYLOR: That's section 35, yes. And that has to do with 
40 the dates of assessment and questions of assessment of 
41 the dates. 
42 And a similar effect, are Jack and Charlie, and 
43 Kruger. And we say, in the next paragraph, arguably, 
44 and if the evidence supports the core group of 
45 interests may include matters which are -- and this is 
46 essentially a quote "at the centre of what Indians do 
47 and what Indians are." That's a quote from My Lord 
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1 Justice Lambert's decision in the Dick case. We say 
2 that's culture plus. It has to be culture plus. And 
3 the facts in that were that, yes, hunting was done 
4 from time immemorial, it was very important, but we 
5 were dealing with the Alkali Band of Indians in a very 
6 remote part of British Columbia, who depended on 
7 hunting to put food on the table, and the rigorous 
8 application of the Wildlife Act in that case could 
9 hamper that. And if that's the situation, that goes 

10 to those core group of interests, the very survival of 
11 Indians would go to the core group of interests. But, 
12 if you contrast that with Kruger, where the evidence 
13 was that the Penticton band had hunted from time 
14 immemorial, but in the assessment of the evidence on 
15 that case in the modern context it was not held in 
16 that case to go to the question of the core. And so 
17 that the other question that arises is when do you 
18 look at this? 
19 LAMBERT, J.A.: In Kruger there was no evidence. That's the 
20 essential aspect of Kruger. 
21 MR. TAYLOR: I understand that, my lord. But the same 
22 theoretical considerations, I would submit, applied in 
23 both cases. If I can just develop the thought, when 
24 one's assessing whether the provincial legislation 
25 invades the core, the assessment is made at the time 
26 that the challenge is made, at the time you're testing 
27 the legislation or the grant. You look to what did 
28 the Indians do now? Whereas under section -- under 
29 aboriginal rights, and under the authority of Sparrow, 
30 you say, what did the Indians do at the date of 
31 sovereignty? And it's two different things, two very 
32 different things. And I would submit, my lord, that 
33 the Penticton Indian Band has the same aboriginal 
34 right claims as at the date of sovereignty, to hunting 
35 as an aspect of their distinctive culture as does the 
36 Alkali Band. And similarly, and arguably, in Jack and 
37 Charlie, that band as at the date of sovereignty had 
38 those claims to culture as did the Alkali Band in the 
39 Dick case. The distinction was, under the 91(24) 
40 analysis you don't look to the date of sovereignty, 
41 what was the original right, you look to its practice 
42 at the time in determining whether the legislation was 
43 valid. 
44 And in Dick, and I, with the greatest respect to my 
45 lord Justice Lambert, it was not decided that those 
46 facts were sufficient to put it into the core, there 
47 was only an assumption. And insofar as your finding, 
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1 Lord Justice Lambert's finding was to the effect that 
2 we are dealing with culture plus, culture plus the 
3 very right to survival, putting meat on the family 
4 table is involved. That's one thing. But if it's a 
5 finding simply that it's culture, it's like the 
6 Penticton Band's right, historic right, or it's like 
7 the hunting for religious purposes right, and we would 
8 would say that case does not go that far, the Supreme 
9 Court of Canada's acceptance of that as an arguable 

10 proposition does not go that far, and there is no case 
11 that treats a purely cultural aspect as being part of 
12 the core. And on the authorities, and as a matter of 
13 principle, we submit it should not be part of the 
14 core, as culture is a matter that develops fluidly 
15 over time and it's impacted by a number of factors. 
16 And the Chief Justice in the decision in this case 
17 dealt with a lot of those factors and the inter-
18 relationships. 
19 HUTCHEON, J.A.: Is culture or would culture include the choice 
20 of the chief? Doesn't that go to the core? 
21 Wouldn't -- and would the province be able to say how 
22 the chief is to be chosen? I wouldn't think so. But 
23 that's culture, or tradition. 
24 MR. TAYLOR: Well, that's — 
25 HUTCHEON, J.A.: It's a different aspect of it — 
26 MR. TAYLOR: The choice of the chief is perhaps a good example. 
27 It's hard to imagine why the province would be 
28 particularly concerned about the choice of a chief. 
29 HUTCHEON, J.A.: Well, some province might say we are not going 
30 to have this kind of -- we are going to have a 
31 democratic election here. 
32 MR. TAYLOR: I would submit, my lord, if forced into that, in 
33 deciding that issue, I would say that no, yes that is 
34 not a matter of core, the choice of the chief. In 
35 fact, the reality of the situation --
36 HUTCHEON, J.A.: Not a matter of core? 
37 MR. TAYLOR: As an example, and that brings a good distinction 
38 between aboriginal rights and core. One of the things 
39 that is particularly of the core under 91(24), is the 
40 right to elect a chief. The Indian Act sets out 
41 provisions, and the right of band members to elect a 
42 band council and the band council to then nominate the 
43 chief. That's a 91(24) interest. The traditional or 
44 historic or aboriginal right to select a chief through 
45 another process, is a section 35 interest. 
46 HUTCHEON, J.A.: But the test is if the province were to pass 
47 the same legislation as the federal people did, I 
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1 don't think it could stand up. 
2 MR. TAYLOR: It would have to be a law of general application, 
3 first of all. It couldn't be directed at Indians. 
4 HUTCHEON, J.A.: Yes. 
5 MR. TAYLOR: But if there was a law, and again it's hard to 
6 think of an example, but if there was a law that had 
7 an incidental effect on the traditional choosing of 
8 chiefs, it may well stand up ex proprio vigore. 
9 HUTCHEON, J.A.: It would have to get in through section 88 

10 first before you start to talk about it. 
11 MR. TAYLOR: Not necessarily. I think it could be applied ex 
12 proprio vigore, as, for instance, in one of the 
13 earliest cases on this, the Medicine Act applied to an 
14 Indian who is purporting to practise medicine. 
15 HUTCHEON, J.A.: That's Harold case? 
16 MR. TAYLOR: Yes. That may be said to be part of one's culture, 
17 traditional medicine, but that's not to say that the 
18 province can't, in its proper sphere, say nobody can 
19 do it, including Indians. And presumably if there is 
20 some aspect of chiefdom that fit within the 
21 provincial, a proper head of provincial power, that 
22 was affected by that, it would be valid. You couldn't 
23 single out a chief and say, these people can't be 
24 chiefs. That clearly would be a clear invasion of the 
25 91(24). Because you're talking about Indians as 
26 Indians at that point. 
27 LAMBERT, J.A.: Is there any case -- I am sorry I don't know 
28 these cases but we have gone through just little bits 
29 of them -- but is there any case in which it was 
30 decided that the matter of the legislation affected a 
31 core value of Indianness, and as as a result the 
32 legislation did not apply to Indians? 
33 MR. TAYLOR: Yes, my lord. At 228 (0), the Derrickson case that 
34 I have cited there, held that. That was the case 
35 involving whether or not the Family Relations Act 
36 applied to a moveable property of Indians on a 
37 reserve. 
38 Although in that case as well there was a clear 
39 conflict with the provisions of the Indian Act. But, 
40 again, in that case, property of Indians off reserve 
41 would be -- would fall under the purview of the Family 
42 Relations Act. But on the reserve, because of the 
43 Indian Act and the way it's dealt with in the Indian 
44 Act for possession and rights and that sort of thing, 
45 it could not apply. But that has been held to be a 
46 core interest, the interest of the natives in the 
47 statutory reserve. And it's specifically dealt with 
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1 by federal legislation so the paramouncy doctrine 
2 would apply anyway. But in terms of this cultural 
3 component that I am talking about, other than the --
4 LAMBERT, J.A.: I am sorry, what was the legislation in question 
5 in Derrickson? It was British Columbia legislation in 
6 relation to family law? 
7 MR. TAYLOR: Yes, the Family Relations Act. 
8 LAMBERT, J.A.: Right. Was it decided that section 88 applied? 
9 MR. TAYLOR: No, it couldn't apply because there was a conflict 

10 with the provisions of the Indian Act dealing with 
11 ownership of property on the reserve. The Indian Act 
12 dealt specifically with certificates of interest and 
13 that sort of thing. 
14 LAMBERT, J.A.: If there was a conflict why is the question of 
15 core interest, of the core values, part of ratio 
16 decidendi? 
17 MR. TAYLOR: Because it works on two levels, my lord. First of 
18 all, on the authority of Dick and Derrickson as well, 
19 the first level of his inquiry is, has the provincial 
20 legislation affected the core interests? If the 
21 answer to that is yes, it cannot apply ex proprio 
22 vigore. If the answer is no, it can -- it does apply 
23 ex proprio vigore, provided it's a law of general 
24 application. But if it -- if it doesn't apply ex 
25 proprio vigore, then one goes to section 88 and under 
26 the authority of Dick and Derrickson and the settled 
27 law in that area, it's been held that section 88 is 
28 necessary only when the provincial legislation touches 
29 upon these core interests, and if that happens it can 
30 be referentially incorporated, provided, one, it's a 
31 law of general application; and, two, it doesn't 
32 conflict with any federal legislation. 
33 Now, some of the cases deal with it less 
34 circuitously simply by saying, if it conflicts with 
35 federal, valid federal legislation, then the 
36 paramouncy doctrine applies, we don't have to go 
37 through this analysis. 
38 LAMBERT, J.A.: We don't have to go through the core analysis? 
39 But in Derrickson you say they followed the different 
40 route, they went through the core analysis and their 
41 actual train of reasoning makes their decision ratio 
42 decidendi that this was a core interest in the 
43 Derrickson case? 
44 MR. TAYLOR: Yes, there is a discussion of the Indian interest 
45 under the Indian Act in statutory reserves as being 
46 part of this core. And then it talks about the 
47 section 88. There was a finding it was core. I can't 
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1 say that they went through the same analysis I just 
2 did but there was a finding there was a core and then 
3 section 88 held and the decision was no. 
4 LAMBERT, J.A.: In that case, then, there would effectively have 
5 been a reading down of the Family Relations Act of 
6 British Columbia to preserve its constitutionality by 
7 saying it doesn't apply to Indians? 
8 MR. TAYLOR: No, there was a reading down to say it doesn't 
9 apply to a moveable property of Indians on Indian 

10 reserves. It doesn't apply off reserve. 
11 LAMBERT, J.A.: I beg your pardon. Of course that's so. But 
12 there was a reading down involved? 
13 MR. TAYLOR: Yes. 
14 LAMBERT, J.A.: To preserve constitutionality in relation to the 
15 core area? 
16 MR. TAYLOR: Yes, there was. 
17 Now, my lords, if I could just go back to where I 
18 was yesterday and then develop from that summary, and 
19 I hope that clarified things. It's the Dick case, 
20 which is at tab Q, 228 Q, and we were at page 330. 
21 And Mr. Justice Beetz recited the ultimate conclusion 
22 on the evidence by My Lord Mr. Justice Lambert: 
23 
24 "In my opinion it is impossible to read the 
25 evidence without realizing that killing fish 
26 and animals for food and other uses gives shape 
27 and meaning to the lives of the members of the 
28 Alkali Lake band. It is at the centre of what 
2 9 they do." 
30 
31 Now --
32 TAGGART, J.A.: Was that at 330? 
33 MR. TAYLOR: That's at page 320. 
34 TAGGART, J.A.: 320. 
35 MR. TAYLOR: It's the second full paragraph. 
36 TAGGART, J.A.: Yes. Okay. 
37 MR. TAYLOR: But that as My lord Mr. Justice Lambert points out 
38 was on the basis of evidence. As we say, before going 
39 into this analysis, it's our position that culture 
40 alone is not sufficient, and there is no authority 
41 saying that culture alone is sufficient to make it a 
42 core interest. And on the authority of the Natural 
43 Parents, and the thrust, the whole thrust of that case 
44 says it cannot stand, there can be nothing more 
45 cultural than raising children in a community. 
46 But, if we can at least accept the same assumption 
47 accepted by Mr. Justice Beetz, with our understanding 
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1 that what we are talking about is culture plus 
2 something else, then some other propositions follow. 
3 And I am at 228 R. And I will back to Dick to develop 
4 section 88 because it's fairly clearly laid out in 
5 Dick what the tests are in section 88. But if I can 
6 go to 228 R and just develop this thought of the core 
7 and assessing the core at the date of the assessment 
8 of the constitutional validity of the legislation. At 
9 228 R in Simon, the Supreme Court of Canada stated 

10 that the question of whether rights had been 
11 extinguished cannot be determined without an analysis 
12 of facts. And that goes back to the -- and that also 
13 was stated in Kruger, the comment about aboriginal 
14 rights being wrapped up in tradition and history and 
15 morality, and you have to look at specific lands and 
16 specific facts. 
17 Now, although it is for the province to prove 
18 extinguishment, the appellants must demonstrate that 
19 their interests we say are within the core under 
20 section 91(24). That was the effect in Simon. As you 
21 will recall, there was no evidence as to use of the 
22 road or what the road was for or what regime, legal 
23 regime attached to the road. And then in Kruger, the 
24 burden, the assumption under 91(24), this is another 
25 distinction between 91(24) and section 31(5) . Or 
26 35(1). In 91(24) the cases have consistently held 
27 there is a presumption of constitutional validity. 
28 The burden is on the party challenging that validity 
29 to show it to be unconstitutional. In the native law 
30 area that is to show that the legislation goes to the 
31 core, and if it does, then section 88 can't apply 
32 because it's not a law of general application or it's 
33 colourable or whatever. So the burden there is on the 
34 native group. And if you contrast that with section 
35 35 and the decision of Mr. Justice Dickson in the 
36 Sparrow case, he says, there is no presumption under 
37 section 35 of legislative validity because section 35 
38 is a constitutional right. There is a burden on the 
39 natives to show prima facie interference and there is 
40 a burden to show justification on the Crown after 
41 that. But there is no presumption of legislative 
42 validity. Again, another distinction between 91(24), 
43 the narrow scope of section 91(24) and the broad scope 
44 of section 35. 
45 At 220 S, we make the obvious observation that the 
46 case at bar does not appear to have been presented at 
47 trial in a manner that would enable the trial judge to 
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1 assess whether any or all aboriginal rights of the 
2 appellants fell within the core group of interest. In 
3 fact, it appears that the case was not even advanced 
4 initially as a claim for common law aboriginal rights. 
5 And that I think has been discussed in the past before 
6 your lordships. 
7 The trial judge did not find it necessary to assess 
8 the evidence in light of the constitutional issues 
9 that we have been discussing over the last day or so. 

10 It is submitted that this court should not attempt to 
11 determine whether or not any of the alleged rights 
12 fall within the core group of interests because to do 
13 so would be to determine this complex factual and 
14 legal matter as a matter of first impression. And I 
15 should point out, as is stated by the Chief Justice in 
16 the decision, there was 318 days of evidence, and an 
17 equivalent or more number of days devoted to argument. 
18 And a lot of it dealt with what the condition was on 
19 the ground at the time of the trial, and that is the 
20 point in time that is valid for an assessment of what 
21 issue is a core issue. 
22 Now, at 228 U we set out the ultimate finding of 
23 the trial judge with respect to aboriginal rights, 
24 apart from the question of extinguishment. And I have 
25 quoted from it. 
26 
27 "Subject to what follows, the plaintiffs have 
28 established as of the date of British 
29 sovereignty the requirements for continued 
30 residence in their villages and for 
31 non-exclusive aboriginal sustenance rights 
32 within those portions of the territory I shall 
33 later define. These aboriginal rights do not 
34 include commercial practices." 
35 
36 Now, that is a finding on the evidence, and it 
37 involves the drawing of a line. What did the evidence 
38 say about the aboriginal right as practised at the 
39 date of sovereignty? And if I could take your 
40 lordships to tab U at page 395, the ultimate 
41 conclusion is set out that I have quoted from. But if 
42 I could take your lordships to pages 111 and 112, 
43 which was from the summary at the beginning of the 
44 judgment, it ties in. 
45 At paragraph 12, the Chief Justice set out the 
46 historic use of the early ancestors. "These early 
47 ancestors lived mainly in or near villages..." et 
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1 cetera. Going down at about two-thirds of the way 
2 through: 
3 
4 "Further, these early ancestors also used some 
5 other parts of the territory surrounding and 
6 between the villages and rivers and further 
7 away as circumstances required for hunting and 
8 gathering the products of the lands and waters 
9 of the territory for sustenance and ceremonial 

10 purposes." 
11 
12 And then the Chief Justice, having looked at the 
13 historical, the ancient history, looks at the more 
14 recent history, but not that recent, the date of 
15 sovereignty, and that's dealt with in paragraph 22 on 
16 page 112. 
17 
18 "The aboriginal interests of the post-contact 
19 ancestors of the plaintiffs at the date of 
20 sovereignty were those exercised by their own 
21 more remote ancestors for an uncertain long 
22 time. Basically, these were rights to live in 
23 their villages and to occupy adjacent lands for 
24 the purpose of gathering the products of the 
25 lands and waters for subsistence and ceremonial 
26 purposes." 
27 
28 And as the ultimate conclusion makes clear, that 
29 is a very intensive use, that is an exclusive use as 
30 found by the trial judge, the villages and surrounding 
31 lands, but the territory beyond that was non-
32 exclusive, even at the date of sovereignty. And as I 
33 will turn to in a moment, at the date, the critical 
34 date that one would have to look at those uses in 
35 terms of trying to assess whether or not it was a core 
36 interest, it was a much different situation. Things 
37 had changed to the point where great areas of the 
38 territory had not been used in some cases on the 
39 evidence, ever, because nobody could recall it being 
40 used, and sometimes not for 40 years or so. 
41 So that the conclusion, and we support both, there 
42 is no ownership, and with respect to that extended 
43 territory, whatever uses were at the time of 
44 sovereignty were not exclusive as a matter of fact. 
45 Now, I would like to deal with a number of specific 
46 findings taken from different areas of the judgment. 
47 And I should state that the province does not 



1549 

Submissions by Mr. Taylor 
1 necessarily adopt the characterizations used by the 
2 trial judge but we accept the findings of fact. We 
3 may disagree with the language but the findings of 
4 fact are accepted. 
5 And it's useful to analyze the assessment of the 
6 trial judge's assessment of the evidence of these 
7 matters from the various sources, both as to the 
8 quality of the evidence before him, the extent or 
9 scope of the alleged right, and the issue, the 

10 importance of these alleged rights to the appellants 
11 as Indians. In other words, relating to their 
12 Indianness at the time of the relevant assessment 
13 under 91(24). And also what the impact of various 
14 governmental actions was on their Indianness. 
15 Now, as I have stated before, it wasn't necessary 
16 for the trial judge to consider the tests appropriate 
17 to the 91(24) core, or in fact section 35(1), to 
18 analyze the evidence in relation to those tests, but I 
19 have extracted findings from a number of sources 
20 from -- in the judgment, and they relate to areas such 
21 as social organization, jurisdiction and ownership, 
22 the assessment of the weight to be given to evidence, 
23 and in particular expert evidence, boundaries, the 
24 fiduciary duty as found by the Chief Justice, and that 
25 sort of thing. If I could just take you through it, 
26 and I will try to be as brief as I can, but I think 
27 it's important to get a flavour of the evidence and 
28 the findings of the Chief Justice with respect to, 
29 although he did not do the analysis, it sheds light on 
30 what that evidence would be if that analysis were 
31 done. 
32 With respect to the issue of R, the aboriginal 
33 rights as found core interests. And I should say 
34 that, as will become clear, there could well be a 
35 distinction between village sites and surrounding 
36 areas, occupied fields, where there is that exclusive 
37 and intensive use as opposed to aboriginal rights 
38 exercised over the extended territory. 
39 The first, and I have set out the extracts at tab 
40 V. And before getting -- the above conclusion is not 
41 sufficient to enable one to determine which rights and 
42 we say particularly those rights which fall outside 
43 the villages and surrounding lands, fall within the 
44 core group of interests. This becomes even clearer 
45 when one examines the findings of the trial judge 
46 based on the evidence before him. The first finding 
47 is at the first extract in tab V, where it was stated, 
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1 the second paragraph: 
2 
3 "The most striking thing that one notices in the 
4 territory away from the Skeena-Bulkley corridor 
5 is its emptiness. I generally accept the 
6 evidence of witnesses such as Dr. Steciw, Mrs. 
7 Peden and others that very few Indians are to 
8 be seen anywhere except in the large river 
9 corridors. As I have mentioned, the territory 

10 is, indeed, a vast emptiness." 
11 
12 Then the Chief Justice goes on to discuss the 
13 effect of economics, not governmental action, which 
14 caused from the time of sovereignty, when one looks to 
15 see what are those aboriginal rights, a disuse in the 
16 territory as a whole, not because of governmental 
17 action, but because natives were drawn to a better 
18 life in the townsites. 
19 And over at 126, the full, first full paragraph: 
20 
21 "It is common when one thinks of Indian land 
22 claims to think of Indians living off the land 
23 in pristine wilderness. Such would not be an 
24 accurate representation of the present 
25 lifestyle of the great majority of the Gitksan 
26 and Wet'suwet'en people who, while possibly 
27 maintaining minimal contact with individual 
28 territories, have largely moved into the 
29 villages. Many of the few who still trap are 
30 usually able to drive to their traplines and 
31 return home each night." 
32 
33 
34 Now, with respect to these outlying territories, 
35 that word "minimal contact" comes up again and again 
36 and again. And I think it's well established on the 
37 facts before the Chief Justice, and we are going to go 
38 through some of those facts as I say, but keep in mind 
39 My Lord Justice Lambert's assessment of the Alkali 
40 band situation, the very core of Indianness, 
41 sustenance at its greatest, to put food on one's 
42 table, not minimal contact, not minimal use. 
43 At sub B there is an assessment of the quality of 
44 the evidence presented. I would submit it's quality 
45 of evidence, and partly credibility. And it's at 148, 
46 the next extract in, starting at the second full 
47 paragraph. 
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1 "The picture painted by the Indian witnesses and 
2 their anthropological experts suggested that 
3 all aboriginal life revolves around the chief, 
4 clan and house system, and around aboriginal 
5 use of, and connection with, house territories. 
6 
7 I do not question the social importance of 
8 these institutions but I regret to say that I 
9 believe that the plaintiffs' evidence in this 

10 connection was overstated." 
11 
12 And then he goes on to discuss characterizations, 
13 et cetera. 
14 Over on page --
15 LAMBERT, J.A.: In the Dick case, it wasn't a high degree of 
16 occupancy of the land that was in issue, and in saying 
17 that there isn't a great degree of occupancy in the 
18 sense of being present on the land in this case 
19 doesn't meet the point of core values. In the Dick 
20 case, a group of four or five or six members of the 
21 band were going to fish when the spawning run was 
22 taking place of the trout out of a stream on the lake, 
23 and, as I understood the evidence, as far as I 
24 remember now, they would make that visit for two days 
25 in May and hoick out all the spawning trout they 
26 wanted, consistent with conservation, one supposes, 
27 and no one would visit that lake or that spot again 
28 for another year. So isn't constant presence on the 
29 ground, that is the essence of it, if Dick is right in 
30 saying that what they were doing to that case -- of 
31 course they shot a deer on the way. 
32 MR. TAYLOR: That's what brought the case — 
33 LAMBERT, J.A.: That's what brought the case — but it's an 
34 illustration that -- as far as I know they may have 
35 shot the deer in a place they never go to, other than 
36 two days a year either. 
37 MR. TAYLOR: My lord, but my point on this is not that — 
38 perhaps I should explain. Our, in our submission, in 
39 looking at extinguishment one looks at specific acts 
40 of extinguishment relating to specific parcels of 
41 land. We are not suggesting that the granting of a 
42 fee simple over one acre in 22,000 square miles of 
43 territory, extinguishes the right to hunt over 22,000 
44 square miles of territory. We say if extinguishes the 
45 right to hunt on that one acre. 
46 Now, the question in Dick was is this an improper 
47 affecting of the "native right to hunt" as a core 
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1 interest? The legislation as a whole, the restriction 
2 on time. But what we are saying with extinguishment 
3 on this on-the-ground analysis, is that in looking at 
4 whether or not the core interest that is extinguished 
5 is in fact a core interest, you have to look at the 
6 acre, you have to look at gray acre and what the 
7 present use is. And if the evidence is that it's not 
8 used, or hardly used, and that around that one acre, 
9 there is many, many, many acres where one can hunt and 

10 fish and do whatever one wants, that can't be said to 
11 be a core interest. It just doesn't have that 
12 intimate connection with status and capacities that 
13 would be required, assuming that it could be on the 
14 authorities. And, as I say, Dick doesn't go quite 
15 that far. But I am proceeding on the assumption that 
16 it may if it's culture plus. But it's that one acre 
17 we are looking at. And the assessment has to be at 
18 the date of the challenge, or at the date of the grant 
19 of the extinguishment, was there undue or was there 
20 something that affected the interest proven to be a 
21 core interest? 
22 LAMBERT, J.A.: And you're looking at this in relation to fee 
23 simple grants? 
24 MR. TAYLOR: Fee simple grants, yes. 
25 LAMBERT, J.A.: As well as perhaps other forms of grants. 
26 MR. TAYLOR: There could be other interests that could affect 
27 hunting, although hunting, other than the Wildlife 
28 Act, hunting generally is not interfered with by other 
29 grants. The two can be compatible, as long as there 
30 is no hunting signs or no trespass, the property isn't 
31 posted in any way. 
32 LAMBERT, J.A.: You're essentially, I understand then, accepting 
33 that this law about reading down and core values, 
34 though it's only been propounded recently, must have 
35 been in effect since 1871 or represents the law since 
36 1871? 
37 MR. TAYLOR: I think that's the effect of the authorities, yes. 
38 That even though it's of recent origin it must be seen 
39 to go back in time. 
40 LAMBERT, J.A.: It's an explanation of the law that's always been 
41 in effect, yes. 
42 MR. TAYLOR: Yes. Yes. Now, going on with the analysis at sub 
43 C, I won't take your lordships to the actual passage, 
44 but it was held the customs of the appellants' 
45 ancestors relating to land outside the villages were 
46 not universally practised or uniform in nature, 
47 although these ancestors may have developed a priority 
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1 system for the principal fishing sites at village 
2 locations. Again, there is a distinction in the 
3 judgments between the village, surrounding lands and 
4 the broader outlying territory. 
5 Sub D, you could skip that next extract at 372 and 
6 go to the next extract, which is 373. This has to do 
7 with the quality of evidence. Starting at sub F, and 
8 this extract comes from the passage dealing with 
9 self -- the evidence relating to self-government and 

10 the institutions. 
11 
12 "The plaintiffs have indeed maintained 
13 institutions but I am not persuaded all their 
14 present institutions were recognized by their 
15 ancestors. The evidence in this connection was 
16 quite unsatisfactory because it was stated in 
17 such positive universal terms, which did..." 
18 
19 And I would submit there is a typographical error, 
20 there should be a "not" inserted in there, "...which 
21 did not correspond to actual practice." 
22 HUTCHEON, J.A.: You think there is a not missing? 
23 MR. TAYLOR: If there wasn't a not I don't think it would — the 
24 two parts of the sentence would stand together. And I 
25 have looked at the green book version and it has --
26 it's the same language, so it's not just a 
27 transposition error to the Western Weeklies. It seems 
28 to -- I would submit that the not has been left out. 
29 
30 
31 "I do not accept the ancestors 'on the ground' 
32 behaved as they did because of 'institutions.' 
33 Rather I find they more likely acted as they 
34 did because of survival instincts which varied 
35 from village to village." 
36 
37 Now, in the abstract one can say well, he is right 
38 or wrong and anthropologists can debate that, but in 
39 dealing with this constitutional question, you have to 
40 accept, there has to be evidence, somebody has to 
41 analyze the evidence and that's the analysis 
42 undertaken by the trial judge. 
43 And at the bottom --
44 HUTCHEON, J.A.: Well, he doesn't point to any evidence. That's 
45 what bothers me. Throughout we have, in this area we 
46 have conclusions but no evidence that he points to. 
47 MR. TAYLOR: Well, there are passages later where he actually 
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1 discusses evidence of particular witnesses and, in 
2 particular, with respect to the question of 
3 abandonment and the use of the land. But the way --
4 HUTCHEON, J.A.: They more likely acted as they did because of 
5 survival instincts. I would have thought all the 
6 evidence is that they acted in accordance with 
7 tradition not survival instincts. 
8 MR. TAYLOR: Well, I can't comment on that, my lord. That's 
9 what I am --

10 HUTCHEON, J.A.: The disturbing part of this case is to be met 
11 with these conclusions of the trial judge without him 
12 pointing to what he is relying on when he -- "I find 
13 they more likely acted as they did because of survival 
14 instincts." I would have thought they more likely 
15 acted as they did because of tradition. 
16 MR. TAYLOR: My lord, that's what I was saying, there is a 
17 distinction between the abstract conception of 
18 aboriginal rights and how native people acted at 
19 various times, and the evidence. The trial judge is a 
20 very experienced judge, he said "I find..." --
21 HUTCHEON, J.A.: He finds it but it's against all the evidence 
22 he had in front of him. That's the part that disturbs 
23 me, all the witnesses were at the other end of this 
24 conclusion. It's a disturbing part of the case. It 
25 just seems to me -- he said "I don't need the 
26 anthropologists, I don't need them" and as to the 
27 people who came and gave evidence, well, they may have 
28 believed it but it's not fact. Well, I want to see 
29 what the fact is that he bases his conclusion on. At 
30 least, I would like to see it. I just don't see it. 
31 I haven't -- we haven't heard, of course, from all of 
32 the respondents yet. 
33 MR. TAYLOR: Yes, my lord. As I said at the outset, we don't 
34 necessarily agree with the characterization or 
35 conclusions. And insofar as --
36 HUTCHEON, J.A.: You said you accept the findings --
37 MR. TAYLOR: We accept the findings. 
38 HUTCHEON, J.A.: -- even if the language may not be exact. I 
39 think you said something like that. 
40 MR. TAYLOR: Yes. Unfortunately, we are not in a position, not 
41 having been at trial, to do that kind of analysis that 
42 would satisfy your lordship as to whether or not 
43 that's true or not. 
44 HUTCHEON, J.A.: That's a startling conclusion, to me, at any 
45 rate. 
46 MR. TAYLOR: I would think that the — either the federal 
47 government or the amicus in supporting the judgment 
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1 may be able to shed more light on that issue. 
2 HUTCHEON, J.A.: All right. 
3 MR. TAYLOR: The next extract is from page 384, and this has to 
4 do with the finding at the date of British 
5 sovereignty. 
6 
7 "I am satisfied that at the date of British 
8 sovereignty the plaintiffs' ancestors were 
9 living in their villages on the great rivers in 

10 a form of communal society, occupying or using 
11 fishing sites and adjacent lands as their 
12 ancestors had done for the purpose of hunting 
13 and gathering whatever they required for 
14 sustenance. They governed themselves in their 
15 villages and immediately surrounding areas to 
16 the extent necessary for communal living, but 
17 it cannot be said that they owned or governed 
18 such vast and almost inaccessible tracts of 
19 land in any sense that would be recognized by 
20 the law. In no sense could it be said that the 
21 Gitksan or Wet'suwet'en law or title followed 
22 or governed these people except possibly in a 
23 social sense to the far reaches of the 
24 territory." 
25 
26 Now, what I take from that finding and that 
27 conclusion, is that in the village sites there was 
28 this intense occupation and control, but in the more 
29 extended territory, there was a non-exclusive use with 
30 competing users and, as well, there was not that level 
31 of control by the Gitksan and Wet'suwet'en as has been 
32 suggested by the appellant, but the trial judge is 
33 accepting that with respect to the movement into the 
34 outer areas, the internal regulations for 
35 self-governance amongst Gitksan and Wet'suwet'en 
36 themselves, had some application. And that's how I 
37 would interpret that statement. But it gives the 
38 thrust, it gives again the finding that there is a big 
39 distinction on the evidence between village sites and 
40 surrounding areas and the territory. And that as well 
41 goes to section 35, the section 35(1) analysis, that 
42 type of evidence, that's not the analysis, but that 
43 type of evidence that gave rise to that finding would 
44 be relevant in the section 35(1) analysis and also 
45 relevant in a 91(24) analysis. 
46 The next extract, at 395, deals with the interplay 
47 between the aboriginal right at the date of 
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1 sovereignty and modern activities. And it's the first 
2 full paragraph. 
3 
4 "In the face of this, and in view of the fact 
5 that Indians have always had access to all 
6 vacant Crown lands, it is difficult to 
7 understand how, apart from the question of 
8 priorities and aboriginal sustenance right in 
9 such a remote land could be an exclusive right. 

10 If it was exclusive originally, it has been 
11 changed throughout history in the same way the 
12 Fraser River fishery is no longer exclusively 
13 an aboriginal fishery." 
14 
15 Now, at G, at page 170, there is an assessment of 
16 the evidence of one of the expert witnesses, Mr. Daly, 
17 and a criticism of Mr. Daly's evidence. But I am 
18 looking not so much for the criticism, although that 
19 goes to the trial judge's assessment of the quality of 
20 the evidence, but to the actual assessment by the 
21 trial judge, who heard not only Mr. Daly and other 
22 experts, but heard elders of the community and 
23 witnesses who were living in that community then, talk 
24 about modern day customs, and how important or not 
25 important modern day culture or the traditional 
26 culture was to the modern day Indian. And it's stated 
27 in the second full paragraph: 
28 
29 "First, he placed far more..." 
30 
31 Referring to Dr. Daly, 
32 
33 "...far more weight on continuing aboriginal 
34 activities than I would from the evidence, 
35 although he recognized the substantial 
36 participation of the Indians in the cash 
37 economy. For example, at page 95, he mentioned 
38 that Gitksan and Wet'suwet'en persons regarded 
39 their land as 'their food box and their 
40 treasury' and young persons going hunting often 
41 saying, 'we are going to the Indian 
42 supermarket, to our land'", 
43 
44 And that's Mr. Daly's interpretation of events and 
45 the lifestyle, 
46 
47 "...but many witnesses said the young people are 
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1 not interested in aboriginal activities. At 
2 page 118 he recognized 'Country food may not at 
3 all times be a major source of food for all 
4 families.'" 
5 
6 And the trial judge concludes, and I submit as a 
7 matter of fact: 
8 
9 "I find it is seldom a major source." 

10 
11 Now, contrast that with the recitation of facts 
12 relating to the Alkali band, and even if culture plus, 
13 as I have called it, can be a core interest, that's 
14 certainly nowhere near that vital an integral matter 
15 relating to Indians, Indianness, that was discussed in 
16 the Dick case. 
17 There was a further or other findings at H, that 
18 British Columbia policy in the territory did not 
19 usually interfere seriously with Indian land use. If 
20 I can turn that up, it's at page 419. Perhaps this 
21 may, My Lord Justice Hutcheon, the Chief Justice makes 
22 a comment on page 419 that may be some answer to your 
23 observation a moment ago, at the third full paragraph. 
24 
25 "In considering what the law expects in the 
26 circumstances of this case, it is necessary to 
27 remember was has really happened in the 
28 territory and what is happening now." 
29 
30 The Chief Justice here is talking about the 
31 fiduciary duty. Then he goes on: 
32 
33 "I do not pretend that I have precisely captured 
34 all the social and economic dynamics which are 
35 operating within the Gitksan and Wet'suwet'en 
36 and non-Indian communities, nor do I expect 
37 that every observer would necessarily reach the 
38 same conclusions as I do. I also recognize 
39 that a trial may not always be the best way to 
40 investigate these matters but the evidence is 
41 the only information I have." 
42 
43 And keeping in mind the scope of this case and the 
44 fact that the evidence, the presentation of the 
45 evidence took some 318 days, it's not surprising that 
46 someone -- the scope of this case is such that the 
47 human mind cannot grasp every facet of it with the 
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1 precision you might like. One can only do as well as 
2 one can. And I think the Chief Justice is 
3 acknowledging that in that passage. 
4 But going on with respect to this question of the 
5 effect of governmental action, and again this has to 
6 be taken in context of the 91(24) core for the period 
7 1871 to 1982, it's stated in the last paragraph: 
8 
9 "In British Columbia the responsibility of the 

10 Crown has always been a difficult one to 
11 discharge with actual conflicts between 
12 settlers and Indians not as obvious as in other 
13 parts of North America, even though the 
14 potential for conflict was always present 
15 because of limited agricultural land. Compared 
16 with other jurisdictions where Indians were 
17 confined to reserves, or their rights were 
18 purchased for a pittance, British Columbia land 
19 policy in the territory did not usually 
20 interfere seriously with Indian land use. 
21 Settlement, which did not begin in the 
22 territory until the beginning of this century, 
23 was initially confined to the Bulkley and 
24 Kispiox valleys, where land cultivation had not 
25 been pursued vigorously by many Indians. There 
26 were no large railway land grants in the 
27 territory, and even the pre-emption of most 
28 agricultural land did not impinge seriously on 
29 many aspects of aboriginal life." 
30 
31 Now that finding, although not directed to 1924, 
32 is the type of finding that would arise from an 
33 inquiry as to whether or not a matter was a core 
34 matter. 
35 And at page 420, again it deals with the effect of 
36 governmental intrusion on this question of Indianness, 
37 and it was held, at page 420, the third full 
38 paragraph: 
39 
40 "The evidence suggests that the land was seldom 
41 able to provide the Indians with anything more 
42 than a primitive existence. There was no 
43 massive physical interference with Indian 
44 access to non-reserve land sustenance in the 
45 territory and there was no forced or encouraged 
46 migration away from the land towards the 
47 villages. Migration away from the land has 
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been an Indian initiative and it started before 
there was any substantial settlement in the 
territory." 

And that's just a recognition that culture 
changes. Indians themselves, I submit, should be 
entitled in a modern context to say what makes them an 
Indian. And an Indian does not have to live by 
traditional ways to be an Indian, he can live in a 
village, he can take the advantages of the modern 
economy for himself and his family, and he is no less 
an Indian. So that's why I say, core matters do not 
necessarily include culture. And on the evidence, the 
governmental interference that we would be examining 
with respect to section 91(24), does not seem, does 
not on the trial judge's view of the evidence, seem to 
have impacted seriously on the Indian as Indian. They 
chose to move to the villages and pursue the modern 
economy. 

Would this be a convenient time, my lord? 
J.A.: Yes. Take the morning break TAGGART, 

MORNING BREAK 

TAGGART, J.A.: Mr. Taylor? 
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, my lords. If I could next deal with 

subparagraph J at page seven. And this is an 
instructive passage from the judgment, because it 
deals with areas that -- of evidence that would be 
looked at for a number of these tests. The 91(24) 
test, the section 35(1) test, that the trial judge did 
not find it necessary to analyze. And I am not 
suggesting that that analysis is a complete answer, 
but it's the type of issues that one would direct 
their minds to. 

If I could ask your lordships to turn to the next 
tab, and it's 421 to 22 that I am going to be 
referring to specifically. 

It was stated: 

"I cannot find lack of access to aboriginal land 
has seriously harmed the identity of these 
peoples." 

Now that, I would submit, my lords, is a finding 
that goes to this question of the core, the central 
core under 91(24) . The Chief Justice then went on: 


